UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
for the Fifth Crcuit

No. 93-4114
Summary Cal endar

CLARENCE ROEDER
Peti ti oner- Appel | ant,
VERSUS
UNI TED STATES PARCL COWM SSI ON,

Respondent - Appel | ee.

Appeal fromthe United States Parole Conm ssion
(18 U. S.C. 84106A)

~ (September 10, 1993
Before DAVIS, JONES and DUHE, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM !

Petitioner, Clarence Roeder, is a federal prisoner transferred
to the United States under a prisoner exchange treaty? to serve a
15-year Mexican sentence inposed for inporting 26 tons of
marijuana. The United States Parole Conm ssion (USPC), determ ned
that Petitioner would serve 157 nonths of confinenent followed by

23 nonths of supervised release. Petitioner now appeals the

sentence i nposed by the USPC. W affirm

! Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particular cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.

2 Treaty on the Execution of Penal Sentences, Nov. 26 1976, United
States--Mexico, 28 U . S.T. 7399 [hereinafter "Treaty"].



| .

After a prisoner is transferred to the United States under the
Treaty, the USPC nust anal ogi ze the foreign offense to a conparabl e
violation of United States law. 18 U.S.C. 8 4106A(b)(1)(A) . Here,
the USPC determ ned that Petitioner's Mexican charge was nost akin
to the of fense of possession with intent to distribute marijuana,
21 U S.C 8§ 841(a)(1l). A post-sentence investigative report was
prepared usi ng the appl i cabl e sentenci ng gui del i ne provi sions. See
18 U.S.C. 8 4106A(b) (1) (A (USPC eval uates transferee prisoners as
if they were convicted in US. district court). This report
recommended a gui del i ne range, based upon the quantity of marijuana
i nvol ved and Petitioner's crimnal history, of 188 to 235 nonths.
Because his Mexican sentence was | ess than the m ni nrum gui deline
range, the USPC concluded that Petitioner's 180 nonth foreign
sentence was the applicable "guideline sentence.” See id. at

8 4106A(b)(1)(C; Lara v. United States Parole Conmin, 990

F.2d 839, 840 (5th GCr. 1993).

Petitioner requested a departure fromthe guideline sentence
on two grounds: First, that the abuse he suffered at the hands of
Mexi can authorities warranted a departure; alternatively, he
argued that his participation in the offense was "aberrationa
behavior” on his part. After factoring in "good-tine credits," the
USPC exam ners concl uded that Petitioner would serve 157 nonths in
custody. The panel declined to depart below this term observing
that Petitioner's Mexican sentence (180 nonths) was al ready bel ow

t he gui del i ne range:



In essence, the quantity of marijuana would normally
indicate a release decision well within that guideline

range [of 188-235 nonths], ... the panel would not
normal Iy have departed downward from the bottom of the
gui del i nes. However, on this 15-year sentence, the

projected satisfaction date is at approximately 157

nmonths, wth is 31 nonths under the bottom of the

gui del i nes.

Summary of Transfer Hearing, at 3.

On appeal, Petitioner argues that the USPC commtted two
errors of law. First, Roeder contends that the USPC m sinterpreted
the guidelines in concluding that the 180 nonth Mexican sentence
was below the guidelines, i.e. that this was in itself a
"departure."” Next, he urges that the USPC fail ed to nake necessary
findings under Federal Rule of Crimnal Procedure 32(c)(3)(D).
This Rule requires that a sentencing tribunal nake specific
findings when the defendant "all ege[s] any factual inaccuracy in
the presentence investigation report...." Fed. R Cim P
32(c)(3)(D.°3 Because the examners did not nmake specific
reference to his "aberrant behavior" argunent, Petitioner argues

that a remand i s necessary so the USPC can provi de detail ed reasons

for failing to depart on this ground.

3 The USPC points out that 28 CF.R 8§ 2.62(h)(5) requires USPC
exam ners to resol ve disputed i ssues of fact, and provide witten
findings on their decision. Petitioner inplicitly argues that
Federal Rule of Crimnal Procedure 32(c)(3)(D) is the governing
standard. It would appear that both provisions mandate the sane
result -- witten findings when facts are disputed. In the instant
case, we wll evaluate Petitioner's claimunder Rule 32(c)(3)(D
inlight of 18 U . S.C. 8 4106A(b)(1)(A)'s command that the USPC nust
evaluate transferee prisoners as if they were convicted in a
district court. However, as noted above, both avenues lead to the
same concl usi on.



.
The USPC is entitled to the sane degree of deference to its
factual findings as is a district court in its sentencing

deci si ons. 18 U S.C. 8§ 4106A(b)(2)(B); Hansen v. United States

Parol e Commi n, 904 F.2d 306, 309 (5th Gr. 1990), cert. denied, 498

U S 1052 (1991). W will upset factual findings only upon a
show ng of clear error. 18 U S.C. 8 3742(e); United States v.

Badger, 925 F.2d 101, 104 (5th Cr. 1991).

We review sentences inposed under the guidelines to see if
they are the result of a m sapplication of the guidelines, or are
i nposed in violation of |aw 18 U S.C 8§ 3742(a)(1), (2). A
refusal to depart fromthe guideline range will be upheld unl ess

the refusal is in violation of law, United States v. Thomas, 870

F.2d 174, 176 (5th Cr. 1989), or as a result of clearly erroneous
factual error. See 18 U.S.C. § 3742(e).
L1,

Petitioner first contends that the USPC exam ners m sapplied
the guidelines because they concluded the 180-nonth Mexican
sentence was al ready bel ow the guideline range. This concl usion,
Petitioner maintains, resulted in the exanminer's failure to give
adequate consideration to his departure request. Addi tionally,
Petitioner argues that it was error to factor in his good-tine
credits into the determ nati on whether to depart.

| f Roeder had been convicted in a United States court, his
gui deline range would be 188-235 nonths. The Mexican court,

however, sentenced himto 15 years, or 180 nonths. W have held



that Guideline §8 5Gl.1(a) applies by analogy in these transfer
cases: "This section indicates that where the application of the
CQuidelines results in a sentence above the naxi num aut horized by

statute, the statutory maximum applies.” Thorpe v. United States

Parole Commi n, 902 F. 2d 291, 292 (5th Gr.), cert. denied, 498 U S.

868 (1990).
Petitioner relies on Thorpe as support for his argunent that
the USPC exam ners "erred in viewng [his] foreign sentence |ess

good-tinme credit as establishing a release-date 'below his

gui deline range." Petitioner's Oiginal Brief at 12. Thi s
reliance is msplaced; 1indeed, Thorpe actually supports a

conclusion that the USPC did not err in determning Roeder's
rel ease date:

The Comm ssion correctly applied [US S G 8
5GlL. 1(a)] wunder the analogous circunstances of the
instant case by interpreting the "statutory maxi num' as
the expiration of the [foreign] sentence | ess good tine
credits. The Comm ssion did not err in the determ nation
of Thorpe's rel ease date.

Thorpe, 902 F.2d at 292 (enphasis added); see also Lara, 990 F.2d

at 840 (" Because t he gui deline range exceeded t he forei gn sentence,
the Parol Comm ssion used the full foreign-sentence tine |ess
Lara's applicable credits as the appropriate 'guideline' ....").
This is exactly what the USPC exam ners did in the present case.
There was no error in the application of the guidelines.
Petitioner next argues that the examners failed to make the
requisite witten findings on his claimof "aberrant behavior."
The USPC exam ners were presented with evidence that Petitioner had

no prior run-ins with the |aw This was taken into account in



cal culating Roeder's crimnal history category. See U S S. G Ch.
4, Pt. A intro. coment. There was evidence presented that
Petitioner had a steady work record, and had served in the arned
forces. There was al so evidence that Petitioner's failing eyesight
caused himto |lose his occupation as a truck driver and nechanic,
and that he entered into the marijuana schene in an attenpt to earn
money for his famly. Addi tional ly, there was anpl e docunentati on
of the deplorable conditions of Mexican prisons, and of the abuse
and torture that is inflicted by Mexican authorities on prisoners.
Petitioner now argues that the USPC exam ners erred in not issuing
witten reasons why such evidence did not nerit a downward
departure.

The USPC exam ners obviously considered this evidence, and
inplicitly rejected it. See Summary of Transfer Hearing, at 2-3.
Petitioner cites to no authority, and we have found none, that
requires a sentencing tribunal to explain why it chose not to
depart downward from a guideline sentence.* See 18 U S. C. 8§
3553(c) (Court shall state "reasons for inposition of particular

sentence..."); United States v. Georgiadis, 933 F.2d 1219, 1223

(3rd Gr. 1991) ("Nothing in 8 3553(c) requires the judicial
statenents that [Appellant] wants. We consider the statute's

silence on this point dispositive."); cf. United States v. Garci a,

4 Even |l ooking to Federal Rule of Crimnal Procedure 32(c)(3)(D),
we find no support for this contention. This Rule only requires
written findings when the def endant questions the factual accuracy
of a presentence report. Petitioner does not argue with the
accuracy of the conclusions in his report, rather he focuses on the
failure of the USPC exam ners to coment on their decision to not
depart.



917 F.2d 1370, 1378 (5th Gr. 1990) (court's statenent of its
conclusion suffices as a factual finding).

Mor eover, we conclude that Petitioner cannot argue that his
participation anounted to aberrational behavior on his part. In

United States v. Wllianms, 974 F.2d 25 (5th GCr. 1992), cert.

denied, 113 S. . 1320 (1993), we held that aberrant behavior

generally involves acts that are spont aneous and seem ngly

t houghtl ess act[s] rather than one which was the result of

substantial planning....'" 1d. at 26 (quoting United States v.
Carey, 895 F.2d 318, 325 (7th Gir. 1990)).

Petitioner cannot argue that round-the-world drug running did
not require substantial forethought. It is uncontested that
Petitioner allowed the transport vessel to be titled in his nane,
and that he served as the ship's mechanic on its illicit voyage.
We review factual findings for clear error. Though the finding
that departure was unwarranted based on Petitioner's aberrant
behavior was an inplicit finding in this case, it is not clearly
erroneous. See id. at 26-27.

Accordingly, Petitioner's sentence is AFFI RVED



